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Dear Mr. Burk:

I have received your January 14, 2010 email request for an advisory opinion
regarding disclosure requirements of the new lobbying legislation effective January 1,
2010. Seg G.L.c. 3, § 41 (2008 ed.).

Your inquiry concerns whether a corporation that retains a registered lobbyist
must report on its semi-annual disclosure statements payments made to an entity for
“public relations” purposes. See G.L.c. 3, § 47 (2008 ed.). In your scenario, though the
corporation has an interest in changing a particular law, there is no legislation proposed
or pending, and its lobbyist is not engaged in lobbying on the matter. The corporation
does, however, retain a public relations expert, so as to influence general public opinion
regarding the issue via various media sources. While the campaign seeks to influence
public opinion, there is no lobbying effort that urges the public to contact government

officials.

Whereas there is no “act to promote, oppose, influence or attempt to intluence
legislation, or to promote, oppose or influence the governor's approval or veto thereof...”
in question, there is no legislative lobbying occurring. G.L. c. 3, § 39 (2008 ed.). Given
that there is no lobbying occurring, it is the opinion of this office that the type of expense
related to the public relations expert in this instance is not of the type that is contemplated
under G.L. c. 3, § 47, as it is not an expense “in connection with promoting, opposing or
influencing legislation,” G.L. ¢. 3, § 47 (2008 ed.).
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